STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE _
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

BUREAU OF COMMUNITY BASED MILITARY PROGRAMS

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9394 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9394
Maureen Ryan Fax: 603-271-8556 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

December 1, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, NH 03301
- REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Community Based
Military Programs, to enter into a sole source agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Inc. (Vendor Code 177204-B005), for the provision of Temporary Assistance to Needy
Families (TANF) Service Members, Veterans and their Families (SMVF) Care Coordination
Program in an amount not to exceed $800,000, effective January 1, 2017 or upon Governor
and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through December 31, 2019. 100%
Federal Funds. This contract is for three (3) years. The Department reserves the right to renew
contract services for up to four (4) additional years subject to continued availability of funding,
satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Funds are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Years 2018 through 2020, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE,
TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SFY Class Title Activity Code Budget
2017 502-500891 Payments to 45057500 $133,336
Providers
2018 502-500891 Payments to 45057500 $266,664
Providers
2019 502-500891 Payments to 45057500 $266,664
Providers
2020 502-500891 Payments to 45057500 $133,336
Providers
Total: $800,000
EXPLANATION

This is a sole source agreement because Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the
only vendor in New Hampshire providing broad, diverse assistance within the military-veteran

N,



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

service delivery system. Services they provide include, but are not limited to, securing stable
housing, securing employment, assessing needed mental health care, as well as courtroom
work with justice-involved veterans, and wrap-around case management for veterans in
substance abuse treatment. Easter Seals provides exceptional services on a statewide level to
any service member, veteran, or military family in need, regardiess of their specific Veterans
Administration (VA) eligibility, or whether or not the services they need are funded through a
specific contract.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-
2019 biennium and SFY 2020.

The purpose of this request is for the provision of services to identify, assess, and
provide service planning and case management to financially-needy service members and
veterans with minor-aged children. There are approximately one hundred fifteen thousand
(115,000) veterans residing in New Hampshire. Military deployments, which may come with
the risk of harm such as Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PSTD), Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI),
and Military Sexual Trauma (MST) present unique challenges which may include; family
stressors, mental health problems, legal issues, housing issues, domestic violence, financial
needs, substance abuse, and other issues that prevent military families from thriving. The
Easter Seals New Hampshire - Military and Veteran Services Care Coordination Program
provides holistic assessment, case planning, and service coordination.

Easter Seals provides services when the VA and other providers are unable to meet
veterans’ needs. Easter Seals’ commitment to the military-veteran population is exemplified
both in its programs and client outcomes, as well as in its aggressive philanthropic
fundraising. In 2006, Easter Seals implemented a military-veteran Care Coordination program
that is regarded as a best practice in New Hampshire. The organization has the staff, military
cultural competence, and infrastructure already in place. Easter Seals’ team of ten (10) Care
Coordinators understand the military-civilian network, referral pathways, and resources
available, and have consistently assumed leadership roles in training and working with other
providers.

The three goals for the program are:

e Reduce dependency and improve self-sufficiency of service members and veterans by
bringing together these individuals and their families with effective employment services
and disability and Veteran benefits, as appropriate;

o Facilitate access to short-term, non-recurrent benefits and crisis intervention to needy
military-veteran families to meet emergent needs as part of a plan for self-sufficiency;
and

e Strengthen military/veteran families, with an emphasis on removing barriers to
successful parenting and co-parenting to reduce the inter-generational cycle of poverty
and family conflict.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, military service
members, veterans, and their families may not have access to necessary assistance which
reduces the risk of homelessness, domestic abuse, substance abuse, legal issues, and other
issues that affect this unique group of individuals.
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Area served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% Federal. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA)
#93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF). FAIN # 16NHTANF.

In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested for to support this contract.

Respectfully submitted,

Maureen
Director

Approved by: WM{

Jeffrey A. Myers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
tn providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: TANF Service Members, Veterans, and Their Families Care Coordination (SS-2017-OHS-01-TANFM)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearty identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address
555 Auburn Street
Manchester, NH 03103

1.6 Account Number
05-95-45-450010-6146-502-
500891

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number
603-623-8863

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

December 31, 2019 $800,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq.
Interim Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.11 Contractor Signature

i\

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

5/1"17 7rea noc, dFZ)

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of AH

, County of M i Sbﬁ’lbu-gi'\

On You '5Q, D01 pefore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated i block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

1 j g
[Seal] A/ '”)krﬁ(} KM

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

CYNTHIA ROSS, Notary Public

“hy Commission Expires March 12, 2019

Date: /&/i//&

1.14 S?te Agency Signature

1,15 Name and Title of State Agency Si%atory
%# W%. Maureen Ly anl
Y Director

1.16 @proval WN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Perﬁ)pﬂel (if ap]?(able)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by t| ney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
B e L P Y1 W1
’ A B B 4

1.18 Approval by the Governor and EXecutive Council (if applicable)

By:

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date”).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials ¢~

Date 7/ 3¢/t erc



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials ?7 ‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Service Members, Veterans and their Families Care Coordination

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1.  Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3.  The Contractor shall make all services identified in this contract available to military
service members, veterans, and their families who are at or below 300% of the
Federal Poverty Level, and who have minor children. Ex-spouses and ex-partners
who are co-parenting with the military service member or veteran are also eligible.

2. Scope of Services

2.1.  The Contractor shall provide Care Coordination services, which include, but are not
limited to:

2.1.1.  Screening

21.2. Assessment

2.1.3. Crisis intervention

2.1.4. Emergency assistance
2.1.5.  Care planning

2.1.6. Service coordination

2.1.7. Resourcefreferral assistance
2.1.8. Case management

2.2.  The Contractor shall ensure services are client-centered and flexible in their delivery,
which may include, but is not limited to meeting clients in their home or at a location
convenient to the client.

2.3. The Contractor shall screen all incoming Care Coordination referrals for eligibility to
enroll in the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Service Members,
Veterans, and Their Families (SMVF) Care Coordination Program. Eligibility
determination for full enroliment in the TANF SMVF Care Coordination Program shall
include identification of:

2.3.1. Military status (DD214 or other formal documentation) of self, spouse, or
ex-spouse. The qualifying factor will be service (prior or current) in the U.S.
military, regardless of Veterans Administration (VA) eligibility (which may be
impacted by type of military service or type of service discharge).

2.3.2.  Minor children in the family, both custodial and non-custodial.
2
S§S-2017-OHS-01-TANFM Exhibit A Contractor Initials 7
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 9 .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Service Members, Veterans and their Families Care Coordination

Exhibit A

2.3.3. Verification of income. The Contractor shall verify that participants in this
Program earn three hundred percent (300%) or less of the Federal Poverty
Level. The Contractor shall use reasonable and agreed upon means for
this verification.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide assessment services which include, but are not limited
to a comprehensive intake assessment tool used to gather critical demographic
information, and information regarding the client's immediate and ongoing needs.

2.5. The Contractor shall use qualified clinical staff to adapt the assessment tool, used in
assessment services, from existing Contractor assessment tools. The tool shall
include descriptions of multiple domains and ranked levels of functioning, and
potential barriers under each domain, to facilitate establishing baseline functioning
and measuring improvement. Domains identified on the assessment tool may
include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Employment status

2.5.2. Financial needs

2.5.3. Legal needs and issues

2.54. Housing stability

25.5. Health care

2.5.6. Mental health

2.5.7. Substance Abuse

2.5.8. Parenting skills

2.5.9. Family relationships

2.5.10. Additional barriers to self-sufficiency

2.6. The Contractor shall provide case planning to establish goals, and delineate steps
and services toward eliminating barriers to achieving these goals, which may include,
but are not limited to:

2.6.1.  Securing employment.

2.6.2.  Securing safe and stable housing.
2.6.3. Improving family relationships.

2.6.4. Removing barriers to self-sufficiency.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide crisis intervention and emergency assistance by
assisting clients with short-term financial needs. The assistance may include, but is
not limited to:

2.71. Facilitating streamlined linkage of appropriate cases to TANF financial
assistance according to policies established by the Department and the
TANF Program.

2.7.2.  Providing financial assistance through the Easter Seals Veterans Count
fund, according to policies established by Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Inc.

o ——
S$S8-2017-OHS-01-TANFM Exhibit A Contractor Initials 4 /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Service Members, Veterans and their Families Care Coordination

Exhibit A

2.8.  The Contractor shall refer clients to needed services, which may include, but are not
limited to:

2.8.1. Employment services
2.8.2. Housing services

2.8.3. Disability benefits

2.8.4. Veteran benefits

2.8.5. TANF financial assistance
2.8.6. Mental Health care

2.8.7. Substance abuse treatment
2.8.8. Legal assistance

2.8.9. Community resources

2.9. The Contractor shall provide case management and service coordination which may
include, but is not limited to:

2.9.1. Ongoing meetings and communication with the client to monitor and ensure
progress toward goals. Frequency and content of communication is based
on individual client needs and preferences, and includes but is not limited
to:

2.9.1.1.  Short-term resource/referral assistance
2.9.1.2. Monthly follow up

2.9.1.3. In-depth long-term case management with multiple encounters
each month

29.2. Ongoing reassessment of client needs, and the corresponding plan, on a
monthly basis.

2.9.3. Counseling and emotional support.

2.9.4. Readmission to the Program for clients that achieve their goals, but then
encounter new circumstances requiring follow up services.

2.9.5. Referring clients to New Hampshire State services through the
Department's NHCarePath system. NHCarePath is a Department Program
that refers clients to statewide partners who provide services and supports
which include, but are not limited to:

2.9.5.1. Options counseling/enroliment in State services and benefits
2.9.5.2. Employment services

2.9.53. Housing and homelessness services

2.9.54. Financial counseling

2955 Family counseling

2.9.5.6. Parenting skills classes

2.957. Medical care

T
S$8-2017-OHS-01-TANFM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Service Members, Veterans and their Families Care Coordination

Exhibit A

2.9.5.8. Mental health care

2.10. The Contractor shall refer clients to State agencies, the VA, and/or other community
providers for appropriate, needed assistance, and track and report referrals.

2.11. The Contractor shall engage clients in treatment for mental health or adjustment
issues in order to facilitate the clients’ development of coping and life skills.

2.12. The Contractor shall enroll unemployed clients in services through NH Employment
Security and/or through the Department of Labor grant programs such as Homeless
Veterans Reintegration Program (HVRP).

2.13. The Contractor shall screen all homeless clients and clients at risk of becoming
homeless for State and Federal housing subsidy programs funded through HUD-
VASH (VA Supported Housing), Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF),
and Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG).

2.14. The Contractor shall provide intervention services to clients at risk of suicide.
Intervention services may include, but are not limited to:

2.14.1. Crisis intervention

2.14.2. Safety planning

2.14.3. Follow-up, counseling

2.14.4. Referral to mental health services and other needed care

2.15. The Contractor shall assist clients for whom other resources are not available due to
eligibility and access barriers, which may include, but are not limited to:

2.15.1. Clients with criminal or legal issues

2.16.2. Clients who have served in the military, but are not eligible for VA services
due to the type of military service or type of discharge

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall utilize an experienced Master's-level Intake Manager for
outreach and screening of incoming referrals to Easter Seals NH Military and
Veterans Services Care Coordination Program.

3.2. The Contractor shall utilize an experienced, licensed clinician to provide clinical
supervision and case review of all cases enrolled in the TANF SMVF Care
Coordination Program.

3.3. The Contractor shall utilize Easter Seals leadership, including but not limited to the
Director of Military and Veterans Services, for purposes of case review and program
evaluation.

3.4. The Contractor shall utilize Military and Veterans Services Care Coordinators in
order to provide TANF SMVF Care Coordination services statewide.

3.41. The Care Coordination team consists of ten (10) Military and Veterans
Services Care Coordinators statewide. These Care Coordinators will
provide part time service to the Program, and their hours may be expanded
based on need and resources. Additional Care Coordinators may also be
added as needed.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Service Members, Veterans and their Families Care Coordination

Exhibit A

3.4.2. Care Coordinators shall provide services in the context of holistic care
coordination across their entire caseloads for eligible cases.

34.3. Total combined Care Coordinator time for the TANF SMVF Care
Coordination Program shall be based on client needs depending upon
location of clients, case load, and types of issues.

3.56. The Contractor shall utilize a Financial Assistance Specialist to coordinate and
process requests for Veterans Count financial assistance.

3.6. The Contractor shall utilize a Data Coordinator to manage data collection and
reporting. Data collected shall include, but is not limited to:

3.6.1.  Demographic information
3.6.2. Process data
3.6.3. Outcomes

3.7. The Contractor shall utilize an Administrative Assistant for routine clerical support,
data entry, and communication.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly statistical reports within fifteen (15) days after
the end of each month. Statistical reports, which shall be sent to the Bureau Chief,
Community Based Military Programs, Office of Human Services include, but are not
limited to:

4.1.1. Care Coordination report which includes, but is not limited to:
4.1.1.1.  Number of clients screened
4.1.1.2.  Number of clients enrolled in TANF SMVF Care Coordination
41.1.3. Linkages made

4114. Client outcomes including, but not limited to, employment,
access to care, employment, housing, resolution of legal issues

4.1.2. TANF-specific report which includes, but is not limited to details regarding:
4.1.2.1. OQutreach/intake
4.1.2.2. Screening and Enroliment
4.1.2.3. Service coordination/Case management
4.1.2.4. Client progress toward goals as measured by assessment tool
4.1.2.5. Client outcomes

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall screen a minimum of five hundred (500) SMVF cases each
year.

5.2. The Contractor shall enroll a minimum of one hundred and fifty (150) cases per year.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide monthly statistical reports to outline the services being
provided.

Pt
S$5-2017-OHS-01-TANFM Exhibit A Contractor Initials [
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. : y
Page 5 of 5 pate_//J vrore



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Service Members, Veterans, and Their Families Care Coordination
Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. This contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) #93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), in
providing services pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The contractor agrees
to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance with funding
requirements.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on
Form P37, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit
A, Scope of Services.

3. Payment for services shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual services
provided in accordance with the budgets identified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-4.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1.The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices based on actual expenses, as
identified in Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit B-4.

4.2.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

4 3. Invoices identified in Section 4.1 must be submitted to:

Financial Manager

Division of Family Assistance
Brown Building

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days after the
Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation
could result in nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of
noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

S$S-2017-OHS-01-TANFM Exhibit B Contractor Initials f’/
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 1./
Page 1 of 1 Date ///jﬂ -0/ G



Z \ “a)8y
e ~ ‘aeq ot
v \\\\v\/\ /7 18 vapa
‘out ‘alysdweH map siBag Jajse]

JOPBIUOD
7>
—
%001 128110 J0 I3 W SV Waspuy
(XY $ [ 92'ge6'sL $ | 9286’61l $] - - - 29°086°LEL 92'966'}1 $ | sc'zes'slL $ LOL
- - s - - - - - s s - $
- - - - - - - s - s - $
S6¢9¢ I ¥0°65¢ s - - - 56292 3 I § | voece 3 Bujund ecl|
- [ - - $ - - - - [ $ - $ “(FojepuELL SIIEIRp J51o8ds) 19UI0 €
- [ - [ - B - B - - S| - $ - $ SWBWaRIBY/SIeUCoaNS 21|
¥1'501 $]9s6 §] 856 s - - - ¥1S01 $]os6 $]esse S UlU(e) [ PUE UONEONDS JEIS "L 1|
- - - - B - - - - I 0
- - - - B - - - - BIEMYOS B
B B B - 3 T - D B SosUSaXg piEog
- - - - - - - - - a0UBINSU|
- - - - - - - - - EGoTpuewpny |
- - - - - - - - - suondussqng |
0r'e9 K2 3 E¥ §1 - - - 01'€9 sfyis 3 E § aBesog
EVEVL [ GFE $ | vesio s - - - eV EPL §|esie $ | ¥8'5i9 $ auoudsiaL
- $ - $ - $ - - - - $ - $ - $
E¥BEYT 11ze 994122 - - - 34 L2z 99°L12"
64°02¢ 10021 2L 00T') - - - L 02€" 0021 20002
69'182°C £VI02 9Zr.07C - - - 97182" ¥ 102 9Z 920"
- - - - - - - - - seyddns g
- - - - - - - - - :o_aw_uﬂ_mwgwwm:ez
- - - - - - - - - JouBuUaUIE PUE Jeday
- - - - - - - - - [EWoY
- - - - - - - - - ZJuswidinby ¢
“8S8LE Y Ve 9L ¥¥E - - - 85°8LE Ve 8L PPE SWEYNsuo) gl
_Lvigsie 6'205'C 266057 - - - 1y'185'/2 6205C 2581052 Siijauag eskoduiy_g|
¥0'862'96 8°66.8 ZZ 8668 3 A : ¥0'86.°96 866.8 22866 /8 SoBEVKIEES [E10L |
— oo} ___been _______ bwig moy - Beng
Says pepung UYOWY / SIBUG JOTIRINOD 90D mog

LLIOE/9 - LLIL/) poued 18Bpng

(dh jo ousen)
uolleuIpI00) 8IBD JANS - INVL 110} Isenbey jeBpng

su] ‘anysduwiel mey siess Jaise3 aweN weiBoidiappig

aoRi3d £39aN8 HOVI ¥04 WHO0L £39aNg 3INO ILI1dW0D
$8J1AJI0S URWINH pue Wy[esH §o Juswpeda aliysdwey moN

[:RIEILE]



=
<3

‘aleq

“S|BINU| JOWENUOD

Lo}
-8 uqupag
“ou| ‘asiysdwe ma s|eas Jejseg

%0°0b 312841 JO JuBdIad ¥ SV 12841pU|
Livziv'sez $ | or'ezi'yZ $ ] loveziez $ - WZiy'sez or'szL'v $ | 1oysz vz Tviol
- - s - - - $] - s| -
- - 3l E - - s] - 3
68'5Z5 3 $ | 808t $ - 88525 sfier § | 808y Bunund B¢}
- [ - $ - S - - $ - (3 - - (Rso1epuew sprejap o)15ads) JAYID
- - $ B $ - - E - (3 - SJUWaAIDY/SIOENU0OANS  Z 1
82012 $|zist $]oriel $ - 82012 2 HX) $1oU16l UILIEIL PUE UOREONPS WEIS | 1]
- - - - - - - SUOHEJILNWIWOD/BUNXye 0
— — — - - . T BIENMOS |
B - B g B - B "~ sasuedx3 pJeod
- - - - - - - aoueInsu|
- - - - - - - —_ EBapueypny |
- - - - - - B — suopduosans |
6192) S| vy sfzivil 3 - 61921 slavt 3 7K1 8BE)50d
S8'e8r | 3 $[89seT $ - S8'98Y $JiLsel $ | g9ise’t auoydaieL
- 3 - $ - $ - - 3 - [ - sasuadxg Wweuny g
S8'8L8Y 312 ZESEYY - '8L8'Y €S EPY ZESEY' Y #ouednoog ]|
“BSI¥9C pLOVZ DA - 179 V1 0¥Z by 10V 2 19ABIL M«
LEEISY piv 25 BYLY - "€95 ¥ SevLY ZS 8vi'y 30O
- - - - - - - 18PN
B - - - B B = FoeulByd
- - - - - - - qe
- - - - - - - (BuGiEonp3
- - - - - - - ‘salddns |
- = = p R = - uoneraidag/aseyaing
- - - - - - - soUBUBUIRY pue Jieday
V5L £9'89 Z€ 889 - "ISL €889 2t 888
T1e96¥'SS LL'SY0'S beISY0S - '96Y°SS L1'SY0'S v9'LS¥'05 Siijeuag oakoldus_z
_vrseLvel 1€Z0L 71 €20°LLL - rb SZLYEL LEZ0LLL £1'€20 LLL SaBepVKIEIES [E0L |
pexe) (LT T pexid [ P4 [ [T
"o woeud ey peng moL 300 peng
IR 10RRNCO SHHG UOWN | SIIUG JOIORINOD m&lﬁ

aoRi3d 139aN8 HOVI ¥04 WNO4 139aN8 3NO F131dWOD

$091AI8S LRWINY pue Uijeol jo juswpedaq asysdweH moN

(8110619 - L1/1/2) 810Z A4S :pouad 1ebpng
uoneUIPI00D IR JAWS INVL ‘10}1senboy jebipng

3u] ‘anysdweH MaN S[eag Jejsed atueN wesBoiguappia

[:R L]



W\“VNV \)\|\w -aleqQ

<42

“S{BIYU| JOPBIWOD

ol
£8¥qua
*ou] ‘anysdWeH MaN S|Bag JeisE]

12841 JO RIS VY SV J2811pu|

29°V16'197

yLe9g'cre
e

29746102 £8'99¢'YZ $ | ri'sss'crz
=i -

avioL

3 N

80'8Ly

Bunung ech

68525

- - 68'62S 8Ly 80'8LY

“(K10)2pUBW S|IB19P 0y1Dads) JagIO T}

51UBLUBAIDY/SIDENUODANS 2}

820i2

L6l

L bkt

Tt sd b O

- - g 0ie t4%:13 gLiel

0 hid hd T At Ml G4

Bujuie.) pUE uoHESNP3 YEIS L1

SUCHEJIUNWWOD/DUNSYBIN "0}
QIBMYOS 6,

505U30x3 pJeog

0UBINSU

1EB57 pue ypny

SUONdUoSANg

|

2Lyl

iyl (7311}

abeisod

|

89'15€°L

89'1GEL

wco:mw_w._r

A0

0
|
)
| ]
~
'l
@

3 -

ML

sasuedxg Weuny g

ZESEV Y

zeser y

Kouednaog /|

PP 0P T

9ABIL Q|

<
b3
< |enfwr

258kl ¥

144
A4 yovT
34

)

298rL Y

IeoIpay

FoeuLeyd

[Cal

(euonednpy

Uo|E10a1d9 (/a5 0ing

3oueuajuiey pue Jieday

fejuay

wewdinby )

ViSL

89

28889

- N L'4S £€8'89 2£'889

TEINSU00 t]

1150'98

'S80'S

£1°956 05

11'956'08

Sijeuag eokoldws 'z,

LZL9'961

vE 681

6€'€6.°8L1

— L E—

- - L2L9°961 ¥E 68771 6EC6L8LL

RIS

SoBB\WAIEIES [©101 |

usweIg

W 9T 1]

Y0
— 11— e T =

61/0¢/9- 8HMIL

(dY Jo wen)

uoljBUIPI00) 318 JANS ANVL

2u] ‘anysdwey moaN sjeag Jo1se3

ao3d L390aN89 HOV3 ¥Od4 WHO4 139ang INO 3131dW0D
$60]AI0G URWINK pue Ljeey Jo Juswpedeq asysdwey meN

:pouad jebpng

10} jsenbey 1eBpng

:sweN weiboid/ieppig

£-g ¥



7

H'W ‘S|BINU JOPBIUOD

Hoi
-9
‘ou| "aiysdwet maN s|eas 1aiseg

13211 JO JWe3I8d ¥ SV 1084PU}

LT

el $ | sg'imv'zzi $

IV10L

- $ - $

- - S

Bumilid e

16'€2 [IXH $

-(Kiojepuew s|iejap oyloads) Jayio

SIUa1LI9aIDY/SPBIUBIGNS

o bl bl 2 N it

Gl bl b s N i 03

UIUIRIL DUB UOIBINPT Jeis

956 $]6sse $

£
K
i
SsuoneEdUNWWIoD/BuneEW 0

BIEMOS

SasUd pseog

soueINSY|

18D PUe yipny

suonduosang

9eLs $

0mw—m0&

suoydeja L

o 0 Gt
|
=
w0
12
|

Ml

$
- - SV ERL $le6sio $ | ¥8'5.9 $
$ - $

SasUadXg WALNY

Y BEY'T

- - ¥ 6EY L1z 899L12C

Fouednoog

002 2L 00z |

oo

JOABIL

il o]

91822

- - 9718z’ ¥ L0 9T vI0T

teaipa

Koeuueyd

qel

|euoneonp3

-salidang ‘g

uonenaidaq/aseyding

FOUELSIUIER PUE JIedoy

(BUSy

Juewdinby |

29848

've

0T ¥ve

SJUB{NSU0D ¢

¥8'881'8¢C

22929'5C

Sjjaudg sokojdws 2

62°806'86

23
29295°¢
591668

£9'916'68

poxid

RRE
15
|
©|
2]
N

SaDENVAIBIES [B10L |

[

SIRU 156RU03 §HHG A4 Pepung =

Wy s

moL By peg moL
WOEN / armug

BLIERL - 8LLL

(a4 jo oweN)
uoheupioo) aed JANS - INVL

ouj ‘aulysdwe meN S|eeg Ja)seT aureN weibosd/appig

QORI3d 1390AN8 HOV3 ¥04 W04 1390N89 INO 3LI3T1dW0D
$891A18G UBWINK PUB Uj[eaH 40 justupedaq asysdwe meN

:pouad 1e6png

140} 3senbey 1eBpng

-8 Hanpa



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services. 7

(4
8. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department withinﬁﬂ’days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of

Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non

Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,

Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as

they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EECP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. [f the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials E /

06/27/14 Page 3 of 5 Date //ZJ‘;«# o/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOQP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-238) and FAR 3.908.

{b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(¢) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor’s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

18.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

i
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’s performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitied "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ﬁ
g
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or availabie funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew contract services for up to four (4) additional years
subject to continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

——
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form shouid
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

N
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: cgque/' 519“)& /?/7L, //Z <.

WYY, by i f
Date 4 Name: £ //, 7 en np—

Title: QFD
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure.
Contractor Name: £Qj‘f\( Sujj )7/71, /’7 e
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

Y LN

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

»ou

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: C(:q‘jfi.,fsw; /2#, /4 (S
1/ 5e/) Y k%//z‘/i\l/ P
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Sq,jftr‘ 5*24/} /7/7)*, /;1 <

i 39/ 20/ Tl
Date _?l?ﬂrge: é’//n 7}‘ ea po
Crw

Exhibit G g
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations
and Whistleblower protections

6/27/14 ///]a// y/é

Rev. 10/21/14 Page 2 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: &Q}VS‘Q‘%& /7#}/,?,:/
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-181 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. ‘Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials Z /
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Exhibit |

I.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2)  Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ll. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

7
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

()

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification,;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’'s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

7

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act / /
Business Associate Agreement / j&/
Page 3 of 6 Date / 4 M



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected heailth information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

I Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4)  Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHL.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’'s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit [, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

-
The State Name of the Contractor

Slgnat e of AWed Representatlve Signature of Authorized Representative

Qu/een g(,’n 2 Eggnbf

Name of Authorized Répresentatlve Name of Authorized Representative
Director, OHS Cro
Title of Authorized Representative Title of AL?orized Representative
» i 34/p0/6
(f1/1¢ )10/
Date ! Date
c(//
3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials __~""
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOCXINOORGLN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: &Dfﬁf 5%/5 /?/4{ /)7 c_

Date Name: & /i, T v o0

Title:
& =2

Lé;

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ///5%0/4)
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: [2 5 -3 5’2 ” ,5 f/(a 7

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

Zi NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
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State of Nefo Hampshire
Hepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[. William M. Gardner. Secrctary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certity that Easter Seals New Hampshire. Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6. 1967, | (urther certify that it is in good standing as far as this office

is concerned. having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, [ hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13" day of April A.D. 2016

oy Bk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, Betty Burke , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of thz Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of __Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on Aprif 13, 2016
{Date;

RESOLVED: Thatthe CFO

“Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 30™ day of Abvewbe 20/6.

(Date Contract Signed)

4. _Elin Treanor is the duly elected CFO
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

Aty ke

(Slgnaturelof the Elected Officer)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _M&Lum%_‘a

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this J o‘hIrl day of _/ ZQ;:/ , 20 Ao,

By Bt Bomke

(Name &f Elected Officer of the Ay L{ﬁ
r’) /4‘4'4

(Ndtary Public/Justice of the Peace)

INOTARY SEAL)

CYNTHIA ROSS, Notary Public

Commission Expires: My Commission Expires March 12, 2019




Client#: 497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD., CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 200

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁgﬂgcr
US! Insurance Services LLC PHONE ¢ ). 856 874-0123 (X oy
3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300 E-MAIL
ADDRESS:
Bedford, NH 031 10 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
855 874-0123 INSURER a : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED INSURER B :
Easter Seals NH, Inc.
INSURER C :
555 Auburn Street
INSURER D :
Manchester, NH 03103
INSURER E :
INSURERF : _
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

II!‘TSRR TYPE OF INSURANCE ﬁ;%%" wv%R POLICY NUMBER (MM Poucm) Pﬂ%ﬁ%) LIMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X | X |PHPK1540533 09/01/2016 | 09/01/2017| EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
J CLAIMS-MADE @ OCCUR PRMARE L s atsence) | $100,000
X| Professional Liab MED EXP (Any one person} $5,000
| X| Host Liquor Liab PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 31,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
POLICY 52(% E Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK15640533 09/01/201609/01/2017 3 5ecieny o " | 1,000,000
zl ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
|| Arodhee SohEQULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| X] HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occuR PHUB553571 09/01/2016 | 09/01/2017| EACH OCCURRENCE $15,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $15,000,000
DED ‘ X| ReTENTION $$10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER oThH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN ISTATUTL I ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUD D NIA
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $
A |EDP PHPK1540533 09/01/2016|09/01/2017 $2,219,050
$500 Deductible
Special Form Incl Theft
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Sch may be d it more space is required)

Supplemental Names*:Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realty, Inc.,Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation
Center, Inc., dba The Farnum Center, Easter Seals VT, Inc.,-The General Liability policy includes a Blanket
Automatic Additional Insured Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Waiver of
Subrogation status to the Certificate Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement
between the named insured and the certificate holder that requires such status, and only with regard to the
(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Department of Health & Human THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Services, State of NH ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 1 of2 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#518461754/M18460756 BVSzZP



DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

above referenced on behalf of the named insured. The General Liability policy contains a special
endorsement with "Primary and Non-Contributory” wording.

SAGITTA 25.3 (2014/01) 2 of 2
#518461754/M18460756
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ACORD
v

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
12/28/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

CONIACT producer HOUSE

Hays Companies PHONE exy: (617)723-7775 [ % o
133 Federal Street, 2nd Floor AL ss:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Boston MA 02110 INSURERA :United States Fire Insurance 21113
INSURED INSURER & :
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc INSURER C :
555 Auburn Street INSURER D :

INSURERE :
Manchester NH 03103 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:16-17 WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION

OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | POLICY NUMBER {MM/DDIYYYY) | (MMIDDIYYYY) LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
J CLAIMS-MADE D OCCUR EQMAGE JORENTED $
EMISES (Ea occurrence)
MED EXP (Any one person) $
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | §
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
POLICY D 'J:E% D LoG PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | 8
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident) $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED .
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED l ! RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION X | PER O1H-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/ STATUTE l ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
A |(Mandatory in NH) 406-7196831 1/1/2016 | 1/1/2017 | E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Sched
Evidence of Insurance

le, may be attached If more space is required}

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH
Dept. of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St.

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
August 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather
than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole.

As discussed in note 1, effective August 31, 2015, Easter Seals NH transferred its sole member interest in
Easter Seals New York, Inc. to Fedcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc. As a result, these consolidated financial
statements do not include the financial position of Easter Seals New York, Inc. at August 31, 2015, while the
results of operations of Easter Seals New York, Inc. are included for the year then ended.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 10, 2015
on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals New Hampshire,
Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

..Bd(er’\)mmn?

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 10, 2015



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2015 and 2014

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance
of $1,896,800 in 2015 and $218,900 in 2014, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $936,400 in 2015 and $440,800 in 2014
Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $26,500 in 2015 and $45,400 in 2014
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of capital lease obligation
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Capital lease obligation, net of current portion
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2015 014

$ 5,615,095 $ 2,757,134
98,710 341,653
7,114,280 10,122,747
605,256 705,374
315,065 300,046
1,214,353 678.326
14,962,759 14,905,280
1,009,131 986,277
22,946,025 25,094,383
1,081,662 1,289,894
59,145 235,113
12,255,793 13,833,046
356.459 1,550.919
$52.670,974 $57,894,912
$ 262356 $ 2,197,904
1,879,211 1,907,743
4,162,793 4,251,482
1,131,777 858,258

58,886 -
442,045 615,570
745.011 4,228,339
8,682,079 14,059,296
971,667 999,167
1,010,108 987,185

81,612 -
2,371,922 2,714,243
19.363,038  18.976.300
32,486,426 37,736,191
14,685373 14,189,337
1,024,433 944,862
4,474,742 5,024,522
20,184,548  20.158,721
$52,670,974 $57.894.912



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $1,047,735

Annual campaigns, net of related

direct costs of $104,418
Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental

agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase in net assets from operations

Year Ended August 31, 2015

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

612,565 § 853,731 § 14300 § 1,480,596
67,806 1,415,710 - 1,483,516
399,236 32,906 - 432,142
492,019 - - 492,019

1.998.486  (1.998.486) -~ -
3,570,112 303,861 14,300 3,888,273
71,965,474 - - 71,965,474
24,111,552 - - 24,111,552
4,375,698 - - 4,375,698
391,263 11,569 - 402,832
33,929 - - 33,929
124,778 — - 124,778
101,002,694 11.569 - 101.014,263
104,572,806 315,430 14,300 104,902,536
410,886 - - 410,886
17,435 - - 17,435
91,613,311 - - 91.613.311
92,041,632 - - 92,041,632
9,785,646 - - 9,785,646
1,808,377 - - 1,808.377
11,594,023 - - 11,594,023
103,635,655 - - 103,635,655
119.969 - - 119,969
103.755.624 - - 103.755.624
817,182 315,430 14,300 1,146,912



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2015

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps  §$
Net unrealized and realized losses
on investments

Decrease in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Loss on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Other nonoperating losses

Increase (decrease) in net assets before effects
of discontinued operations

(Loss) gain from discontinued operations —
see note 13

(Decrease) increase in net assets before
effects of deconsolidation of affiliate

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12
Total increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
(227,568) $ - § - $  (227,568)
(407,029) (223) - (407,252)

- - (62,423) (62,423)
(10,248) - - (10,248)
(128.854) - - (128.854)
(773.699) (223) (62,423) (836.345)
43,483 315,207 (48,123) 310,567
(204.672) 588 - (204.084)
(161,189) 315,795 (48,123) 106,483
657,225 (236.224) _(501,657) (80,656)
496,036 79,571 (549,780) 25,827
14,189,337 944.862  5.024.522 20,158,721
$.14,685373 $.1,024,433 $4,474,742 $_20,184,548



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2014

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $819,901

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $67,889

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from
operations

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

744262 $ 542,179 § 13,813 § 1,300,254
1,059,080 756,895 - 1,815,975
468,261 33,589 - 501,850
448,558 - - 448,558

1,356,595 (1,356.595) - -
4,076,756 (23,932) 13,813 4,066,637
67,725,297 - - 67,725,297
25,094,296 - - 25,094,296
4,270,196 - - 4,270,196
742,337 3,613 - 745,950
65,204 - - 65,204
459,188 - - 459,188
98.356.518 3,613 — 98.360.131
102,433,274 (20,319) 13,813 102,426,768
515,992 - - 515,992
29,065 - - 29,065
89,987,134 — - 89.987.134
90,532,191 - - 90,532,191
9,419,570 - - 9,419,570
2,006,939 - - 2.006.939
11.426.509 — - 11.426.509
101,958,700 - - 101,958,700
122,586 - — 122,586
102,081,286 -~ — 102,081,286
351,988 (20,319) 13,813 345,482



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2014

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Other nonoperating losses

Increase in net assets before effects
of discontinued operations

(Loss) gain from discontinued operations —
see note 13

(Decrease) increase in net assets before
effects of deconsolidation of affiliate

Deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12
Total (decrease) increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$ (594,854) § - 3 - § (594,854)
1,496,964 37,986 - 1,534,950

- - 574,970 574,970

14,352 - - 14,352
(249.092) = - (249.092)
667.370 37.986 574,970 1,280.326
1,019,358 17,667 588,783 1,625,808
(1.476.117) 1,958 - (1,474.159)
(456,759) 19,625 588,783 151,649
(121,612) (200) (5.719.267) _(5.841.079)
(578,371) 19,425  (5,130,484)  (5,689,430)
14,767,708 925437  10,155.006 25,848,151
$_14,189337 $_ 944.862 § 5,024,522 $_20,158,72]
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 25,827 § (5,689,430)
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,880,579 1,771,703
Bad debt provision (benefit) 1,350,516 (265,007)
Decrease (increase) in fair value of beneficial interest in trusts
held by others 62,423 (574,970)
Net loss on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale and impairment losses 62,958 125,346
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 227,568 594,855
Net unrealized and realized losses (gains) on investments 407,252 (1,534,950)
Deconsolidation of affiliates — see note 12 80,656 5,841,079
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable from affiliates (84,823) (94,182)
Program and other accounts receivable (1,096,689) 1,348,396
Contributions receivable (109,179) (20,090)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (739,716) 102,454
Other assets 597,247 81,516
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,862,708 304,390
Deferred revenue 741,405 (61,478)
Other liabilities 22.923 (380.273)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,291,655 1,549,359
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (7,095,514)  (1,244,361)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale 218,514 15,225
Cash provided for deconsolidation of affiliate (812,975) (21,440)
Decrease in investments, net 463,159 1,709,413
Change in assets limited as to use (37.873) 265,625
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (7,264,689) 724,462
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt (971,570) (825,393)
Issuance of long-term debt 4,636,600 280,575
Repayments on lines of credit (26,490,368)  (53,526,692)
Borrowings on lines of credit 27,656,333 51,512,202
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 4.830,995 (2,559,308)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,857,961 (285,487)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,757,134 3.042.621
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $_5,615,095 §$_2,757,134
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid $_1301,000 § 1.201,000
In 2015, Easter Seals NH acquired fixed assets under capital leases totaling $259,604.
In 2015 and 2014, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. transferred its sole member interest in Easter Seals New
York, Inc. and Easter Seals Connecticut, Inc., respectively, to unrelated parties (see note 12). During 2014,

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. transferred property with a net carrying value of $607,088 from fixed assets
to property held for sale.

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals New
York, Inc. (Easter Seals NY); Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (Easter Seals ME); Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc.
(Easter Seals RI); Agency Realty, Inc. (real estate corporation); The Harbor Schools Incorporated (Harbor
Schools); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; and Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals
VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole member of each subsidiary. Easter Seals NH is
affiliated with Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters for the organization).

On August 31, 2015, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with Fedcap Rehabilitation Services,
Inc. (Fedcap), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole member interest in
Easter Seals NY to Fedcap for no consideration. Additionally, on July 31, 2014, Easter Seals NH entered
into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind, Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated
entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak
Hill for no consideration. See also note 12. The accompanying consolidated statements of activities
include the results of operations of Easter Seals NY and Easter Seals CT through the date Easter Seals
NH’s sole member interest was transferred.

On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and cease
all operations of this subsidiary. On June 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to
discontinue the Pediatric Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant losses
the programs were experiencing. See also note 13.

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide (1) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, New York (prior to
deconsolidation), Maine, Massachusetts (prior to the closure of Harbor Schools), Rhode Island, Vermont
and Connecticut (prior to deconsolidation).

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and money
market funds, excluding assets limited as to use.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand.
Approximately $2,811,000 and $2,483,000, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately
$1,322,000 and $2,512,000, respectively, of investments were on-hand under this practice as of
August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other
nonoperating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of several trusts held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an
asset the fair value of its interest in the trusts and such amount is included in permanently restricted net
assets, based on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is
recorded within other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets. Leasehold improvements and the carrying value of equipment financed by capital
leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded
as unrestricted support. See also note 5.

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of net realizable value or carrying value. Easter Seals NH

recognized impairment losses on property held for sale of $139,698 in 2014, which is recorded in other
nonoperating losses. No impairment losses were recognized in 2015.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Accounting rules require that intangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
management for impairment. Intangible assets at August 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of a patient list
obtained in the acquisition of Webster Place.

Expected amortization of intangible assets through the end of their useful lives is as follows:

2016 $ 33,130
2017 33,130
2018 33,130
2019 33,130
2020 33,130
Thereafter 33.132

$198,782

Amortization expense recognized for the patient list in 2015 and 2014 totaled $33,130.

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired
by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Based on current facts, estimates and assumptions, management believes that no long-lived assets were
impaired at August 31, 2015 and 2014.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized by the straight-line method over the repayment period of the
related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is shorter. Amortization expense
recognized during 2015 and 2014 was $9,638.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts
from clients, third-party payors and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered. A
significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors. As such, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities.
There is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the
near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to
be recoverable or payable are included in other fees and grants in the year that such amounts become
known. Easter Seals NY recognized additional revenue of approximately $17,000 in 2015 and $8,000 in
2014 due to favorable rate adjustments approved by the State of New York.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

A third-party payor for three Easter Seals NY programs charged a facility tax assessment on a monthly
basis in 2015 and 2014. The charges are a part of Easter Seals NY’s reimbursement contract with the
payor. The facility tax assessment is based on approved rates. As of August 31, 2015 and 2014, the
facility tax assessment due by Easter Seals NY was approximately $95,000 and $136,000, respectively.
See also Note 12 regarding the deconsolidation of Easter Seals NY on August 31, 2015.

Revenues are recognized as earned, or attributable to the period in which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified by
the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as deferred
revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the collectibility
of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past collection
efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the allowance
for doubtful accounts when deemed uncollectible. The bad debt provision (benefit) in 2015 and 2014
totaled $1,350,516 and $(265,007), respectively. The increase in bad debt provision in 2015 is attributed
to greater volume in certain payor classes at Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center. Contractual
allowances for program and other accounts receivable at August 31, 2015 and 2014 were $1,896,800 and
$218,900, respectively. The increase in contractual allowances in 2015 was due to a higher volume of
services provided at Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center being covered by third-party payors.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged.
Advertising
Easter Seals NH’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $6,262,000 and
$6,802,000 for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY, Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Easter Seals R,
Harbor Schools, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Easter Seals CT are exempt from both
federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, for Easter Seals
NY of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York. Agency Realty, Inc. received a
determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies for tax-exempt status under
Section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in
income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold, based
upon the technical merits of the position.

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained their tax-exempt
status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions
that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Easter
Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to income tax examinations by the
federal or state tax authorities for years prior to 2012.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements described in note 8. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal to
the net amounts receivable under the swap agreements (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreements. However, Easter Seals NH does not anticipate
nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

As of August 31, 2015 and 2014, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $2,819,967 and
$3,329,813, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 8. As a result
of changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized
decreases in net assets of $227,568 and $594,854, respectively, for the years ended August 31, 2015 and
2014 in the accompanying consolidated statements of activity and changes in net assets.

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other nonoperating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the increase in the fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of property, plant and equipment,
and net realized and unrealized gains on investments.

16



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) ASU No. 2015-03, Interest — Imputation of Interest: Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance
Costs (ASU 2015-03). ASU 2015-03 simplifies the presentation of debt issuance costs and requires that
the debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the statement of financial
position as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt
discounts. ASU 2015-03 is effective for Easter Seals NH's fiscal year ending August 31,2017, with early
adoption permitted. The management of Easter Seals NH is currently evaluating the impact of the pending
adoption of ASU 2015-03 on Easter Seals NH’s consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and
Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360). The amendments change the criteria for reporting
discontinued operations, while enhancing disclosures in this area. Those amendments also address
sources of confusion and inconsistent application related to financial reporting of discontinued operations
guidance in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Under the new guidance, only
disposals representing a strategic shift in operations are presented as discontinued operations. Those
strategic shifts should have a major effect on the organization’s operations and financial results.
Examples include a disposal of a major geographic area, a major line of business, or a major equity method
investment. In addition, the new guidance requires expanded disclosures about discontinued operations
that will provide financial statement users with more information about the assets, liabilities, income, and
expenses of discontinued operations. The guidance of the ASU will be effective for Easter Seals NH’s
fiscal year ending August 31, 2016. The management of Easter Seals NH is currently evaluating the
impact of the pending adoption of ASU 2014-08 on Easter Seals NH’s consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain 2014 amounts have been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2015 consolidated financial
statements presentation format.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal year end and
December 10, 2015, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2015 and 2014

Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by
Easter Seals NH has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction
expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements
of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in perpetuity, the income from
which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization.

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds at August 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Temporarily  Permanently

Restricted Restricted Total

2015

Camping program $ 2,464 $ 364,869 $ 367,333
Other programs 11,088 367,319 378,407
Operations — 3.613.207  3.613.207
Total endowment net assets $13,552 $4,345395 $4,358,947
2014

Camping program $ 3,072 3 364,869 $ 367,941
Other programs 33,332 353,019 386,351
Operations - 3,613.207 3.613.207
Total endowment net assets $36,404 $4,331,095 $4,367,499
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2015 and 2014

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Changes in Endowment Net Assets

During the years ended August 31,2015 and 2014, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-related

activities:

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2013

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
Contributions
Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2014

Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees

Net appreciation (realized and unrealized)
Contributions
Appropriated for expenditure

Net endowment assets, August 31, 2015

Temporarily  Permanently
Restricted Restricted Total
$ 20,831 $4,317,279 $4,338,110
22,617 - 22,617
970,963 - 970,963
- 13,816 13,816
(978.007) — (978.007)
36,404 4,331,095 4,367,499
35,554 - 35,554
639,357 - 639,357
- 14,300 14,300
{697,763) — (697,763)
$_13.552 $4345395 $4.358,947

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Permanently  Total Non-

Temporarily  Restricted  Endowment
Unrestricted Restricted (See Note 11) Net Assets

2015
Seniors program $ 158,256 §% 6,107 $ - $ 164,363
Veterans program 132,433 760,869 - 893,302
Other programs - 210,980 - 210,980
Operations 14.394.684 32,925 129,347 14.556.956
Total non-endowment net assets $14,685373 $1,010,881 $129,347 $15,825.601

2014
Seniors program $ - $ 23,866 $ - $ 23,866
Veterans program 263,880 9,702 - 273,582
India initiative 104,600 668,198 - 772,798
Other programs - 174,192 - 174,192
Operations 13,820,857 32,500 693.427 14,546,784
Total non-endowment net assets $14.189.337 $_908.458 $693.427 $15,791,222
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies between the
fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor stipulation at
August 31, 2015 or 2014.

Investment and Spending Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Leases

Operating

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $2,104,000
and $2,420,000 for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s option without
substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2015,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

Year Ended August 31:

2016 $863,060
2017 536,361
2018 277,729
2019 106,124
2020 21,237
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2015 and 2014

Leases (Continued)

Easter Seals NY subleases certain office space located at 11 West 42™ Street in New York to an unrelated
party. The sublease agreement expired in February 2014. Total rental income earned under this sublease
agreement for the year ended August 31, 2014 was approximately $65,000.

Capital

In 2015, Easter Seals NH entered into a three year lease agreement with a bank for certain computer
equipment. Rent expense under this agreement for the year ended August31, 2015 was $38,321. The
carrying value of assets recorded under the capital lease totaled $134,095, net of accumulated
amortization of $44,724, at August 31, 2015. Amortization expense related to the above capital lease is
a component of depreciation expense in the accompanying 2015 consolidated statement of functional
expenses. Interest expense recognized on the capital lease in 2015 was insignificant.

Future minimum payments required for the above capital lease at August 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 $58,886
2017 60,617
2018 20,995
Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

2015 2014
Buildings $ 25,247,764 $ 27,225,674
Land and land improvements 2,897,690 2,696,051
Leasehold improvements 140,663 997,631
Office equipment and furniture 8,416,695 9,679,631
Vehicles 2,936,154 3,250,383
Construction in progress 66.541 296,043
39,705,507 44,145,413
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (16.759.482) (19.051.030)
$.22,946,025 $.25,094,383

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,837,811 and $1,728,935 in 2015
and 2014, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets included within discontinued
operations in 2015 and 2014 totaled $3,825 and $64,351, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of approximately
$1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH must continue to
use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the program, or wish to
sell or donate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the opportunity to purchase
the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the building has been recorded as
deferred revenue at August 31, 2015 and 2014.
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August 31,2015 and 2014

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents $ 452,024 § 523616
Marketable equity securities 1,552,683 1,883,153
Mutual funds 10,636,952 11,634,793
Corporate and foreign bonds 620,550 711,063
Government and agency securities 317.780 366,744

13,579,989 15,119,369

Less: assets limited as to use (1.324.196) (1,286,323)
Total investments, at fair value $12.255.793 $13.833,046

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31, 2015 and 2014 is set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portion of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

2015

[y

1

FuN

Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 7):
Investments $1,009,131 $ 986,277
Maintained in escrow to make required
payments on certain bonds (see note 8):
Cash and cash equivalents 315,065 300.046

Total assets limited as to use $1.324,196 $1,286,323

The principal components of investment income and net realized and unrealized gains included in
continuing operations and other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses are summarized below.

2015 2014
Unrestricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains (losses) on investments:
Dividend and interest income $ 391,263 $ 742,337
Net unrealized (losses) gains (686,996) 668,363
Net realized gains 279967 828.601

(15,766) 2,239,301
Restricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains (losses) on investments:

Dividend and interest income 11,569 3,613
Net unrealized (losses) gains (28,827) 20,109
Net realized gains 28.604 17.877

11,346 41,599

$._(4.420) $2.280.900
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Employee contributions may be matched by Easter Seals NH as determined in the annual budget.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $546,000 and $673,000 for the years ended August 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make
a discretionary contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination, retirement,
death or an unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed approximately
$85,000 and $128,000 to this plan during the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
assets and liabilities associated with this plan were $1,009,131 and $986,277 at August 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:
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Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 A, tax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority NHHEFA),

with a variable rate determined through weekly remarketing (0.03%

at August 31, 2015) through December 2034, annual principal

payments continually increasing from $420,000 to $1,060,000 with

a final payment of $1,060,000 due December 2034, secured by a

pledge of all gross receipts of Easter Seals NH and certain letters of

credit (see below) $13,875,000 $14,275,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued through the Monroe County

Industrial Development Corporation, monthly principal and interest

payments ranging from $10,650 to $21,980 are required through the

maturity date of December 31, 2040. Interest is payable monthly at a

rate equal to 68% of the sum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2.65%

(see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12) - 4,929,360
Non-revolving note payable to a bank with a total availability of

$3,500,000 with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 4.07% (4.27% at

August 31, 2015), interest only payments through June 2015, after

which monthly principal and interest payments are required

through the maturity in June 2018, secured by an interest in certain

property with a net book value of $3,799,172 at August 31, 2015 3,377,160 3,482,580
Unsecured note payable to an individual with a fixed rate of 5.25%,

principal and interest of $10,311 payable monthly, due April 2016 80,847 197,002
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.66%, principal and interest

of $3,177 payable monthly, paid in full in August 2015 - 37,353
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August 31, 2015 and 2014

Borrowings (Continued)
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Various notes payable to a bank with fixed interest rates ranging from

2.24% to 2.50%, various principal and interest payments ranging from

$144 to $2,923 payable monthly through dates ranging from September

2018 through March 2020, secured by vehicles with a net book value

of $346,760 at August 31,2015 $§ 315440 $ 283344
Mortgage note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 4.25%. Principal and

interest of $12,200 payable monthly, due February 2030, secured by

an interest in certain property with a net book value of $3,304,776

at August 31, 2015 2,459,602 -

20,108,049 23,204,639
Less current portion 745.011 4,228,339

$19.363,038  $18,976,300

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

2016 $ 745,011
2017 693,186
2018 3,749,484
2019 572,502
2020 566,120
Thereafter 13,781,746

$20,108,049

Lines of Credit and Other Financing Arrangements

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. had an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving equipment
line of credit. The line of credit was used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use
by Easter Seals NH through April 2, 2014. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was at a
fixed rate at the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term. Upon maturity of this
agreement, the balances outstanding under the note payable at August 31, 2014 were converted to various
term notes secured by vehicles, as described above. Included in long-term debt are seven notes payable
totaling $182,756 and $283,344 at August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment
line, which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals
NH through June 2017. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged on
outstanding borrowings is at a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the advance
for maturities up to a five year term. Included in long-term debt are ten notes payable totaling $132,684
at August 31, 2015 that originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at August 31,
2015 is $367,316.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Borrowings (Continued)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (the sole member of Easter Seals NY, through its deconsolidation on
August 31, 2015, and Harbor Schools), Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools have a revolving line of
credit with a bank through September 1, 2015, with available borrowings up to $7 million (a portion of
which is secured by available letters of credit of $59,000). Outstanding advances are due on demand.
The revolving line of credit has the following sub-limits which were last amended in October 2014: Easter
Seals NH $3.225 million, Easter Seals NY $3.5 million and Harbor Schools $275,000. The interest rate
charged on outstanding borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.45% at August 31,2015). Under an event
of default, the interest rate will increase from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%. The line is
secured by a first priority interest in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals
NY and Harbor Schools. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be
reduced to $3,500,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. The agreement also limits each
borrower’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of $500,000. Amounts outstanding under
this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31,2015 and 2014 were $262,356, for both years, related
to Harbor Schools, and $1,935,548 at August 31, 2014 related to Easter Seals NY (see deconsolidation of
affiliate — note 12). All outstanding balances were paid off on September 1, 2015, (subsequent to year
end), and this line of credit was replaced with that described below.

On August 31, 2015, Easter Seals NH entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank. Borrowing
availability is up to $4 million (a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $59,000).
Outstanding advances are due on demand. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings is at
LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.45% at August 31, 2015). Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase
from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%. The line is secured by a first priority interest in all
business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. with guarantees from Agency Realty, Inc., Easter
Seals VT, and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center. As a result of the deconsolidation of Easter
Seals NY discussed in note 12, Easter Seals NY has been removed as borrower and guarantor under this
revolving line of credit. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be
reduced to $1,000,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. There was no outstanding
balance at August 31, 2015.

NHHEFA 20044 Revenue Bonds

In connection with the NHHEFA 2004A Revenue Bonds, Easter Seals NH is required to make deposits
of interest and principal of sufficient amounts to make the required interest payments and to retire the
bonds when due. The 2004A Revenue Bonds require that Easter Seals NH maintain certain reserve funds
with a trustee for current required principal and interest payments. Such amounts, which are included
within assets limited as to use, totaled $315,065 and $300,046 at August 31,2015 and 2014, respectively.
This agreement also requires bank approval prior to Easter Seals NH incurring additional indebtedness.
Easter Seals NH has two letters of credit securing the bonds for $14,046,062 each (expiring and subject
to renewal on March 15, 2016, and mainly to support future principal and interest repayments due under
the 2004A Revenue Bonds). Easter Seals NH is required to replace or renew the two $14,046,062 letters
of credit upon their expiration or the related bonds may be subject to early redemption. Easter Seals NH
pays an annual fee for the two letters of credit relating to the 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Fees
incurred on these letters of credit totaled approximately $181,000 and $183,000 in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Borrowings (Continued)

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

On December 1, 2010, Easter Seals NY, in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development
Corporation and RBS Citizens, issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (the Series
2010 Bonds). The Series 2010 Bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in
Irondequoit, New York, provide for improvements to a school building and an existing rehabilitation
facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities. Additionally, proceeds were used to
refinance certain Easter Seals NY outstanding debt.

The Series 2010 Bonds are secured by a mortgage on all properties and improvements financed by the
bonds, and are guaranteed by Easter Seals NH. Easter Seals NY may elect to prepay some portion or all
of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee, as defined. This agreement also requires bank
approval prior to Easter Seals NY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 Bonds are subject
to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016, and thereafter
every five years through June 1, 2036. See deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12.

Mortgage Notes Payable

On December 5, 2014, Easter Seals NY entered into a $1,980,000 mortgage note payable to finance the
acquisition of certain property located in Valhalla, New York. The interest rate charged on the
outstanding borrowings is fixed at 3.66% for the first 60 months. Thereafter, as of the first day of the
sixty first (61st) month, the interest rate will re-set to 1.75% per annum in excess of the five-year bank
cost of funds rate as of the re-set date. Monthly principal and interest payments are $9,153, and all
remaining outstanding principal and interest is due on January 2025. The note is secured by the property.
Additionally, this note was guaranteed by Easter Seals NH through August 31, 2015 when the guarantee
was terminated (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note 12).

On February 18, 2015, Easter Seals NH and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center entered into a
$2,480,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Franklin, New
Hampshire. The interest rate charged is fixed at 4.25%. Monthly principal and interest payments are
$12,200, and all remaining outstanding principal and interest is due on February 18, 2030. The note is
secured by the property.

Note Payable

On September 15, 2014, Easter Seals NY entered into a $63,045 note payable to finance the purchase of
equipment. The interest rate charged on the outstanding borrowings is fixed at 3.15%. Monthly principal
and interest payments of $1,841 commenced November 2014, and all remaining outstanding principal
and interest is due in October 2017. The note is secured by the equipment financed (see deconsolidation
of affiliate — note 12).
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August 31, 2015 and 2014

Borrowings (Continued)

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series 2004A
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement has an outstanding notional amount of $13,875,000 and
$14,275,000 at August31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which reduces, in conjunction with bond
principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in December 2034. Easter Seals NH remits interest
at the fixed rate of 3.54% and receives interest at a variable rate (0.03% at August 31, 2015).

On February 23, 2011, Easter Seals NY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in
connection with the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional
amount of $4,929,360 at August 31, 2014 which reduces, in conjunction with bond principal reductions,
until the agreement terminates in January 2031. Easter Seals NY remits interest at a fixed rate of 2.99%
and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of monthly LIBOR) (see deconsolidation of affiliate — note
12).

Excluding interest rate swap agreements of Easter Seals NY for 2015, the fair value of the above interest
rate swap agreements totaled $2,819,967 and $3,329,813 at August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
$442,045 and $615,570 of which was current at August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. During the
years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014 net payments required by the agreements, including Easter Seals
NY, totaled $618,445 and $674,448, respectively. These payments have been included in interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 11 with
respect to fair value determinations.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity
and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31,2015, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenants specified under the NHHEF A bonds and other debt obligations.

Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services

and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

10. Related Party Transactions

11.

Approximately 12% and 13% of other fees and grants revenue is derived from a pass-through grant from
Easter Seals, Inc. for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Easter Seals NH is a
member of Easter Seals, Inc. As of August 31,2014, Easter Seals NY had a receivable of $334,352 from
Easter Seals, Inc. related to amounts due under this grant. Membership fees to Easter Seals, Inc. were
$119,969 and $122,586 for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are reflected as
support of National programs on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in
net assets.

Easter Seals NH has an amount due from Easter Seals NY of $98,710 at August 31, 2015, which is
expected to be received in 2016 (see also note 12). Easter Seals NH also had an amount due from Easter
Seals CT of $7,301 at August 31, 2014, which was received in 2015 (see also note 12).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trusts, investments and the interest rate swaps, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions involving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31, 2015 and
2014,

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds that are based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
are reflected as Level 1. Investments in certain government and agency securities and corporate and
foreign bonds where securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active
markets are valued by the investment managers and reflected as Level 2.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts Held by Qthers

The beneficial interest in trusts held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trusts. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds, government and agency securities and other asset funds are based upon
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and are reflected as Level 1. Investments in marketable
equity securities, mutual funds and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and
generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and
reflected as Level 2.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The fair value for the interest rate swap liabilities is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the
counterparty using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and
discount the future amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest
rates.
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

At August 31,2015 and 2014, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2015
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 452,024 $ - $ — $§ 452,024
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap 957,876 - - 957,876
International 594,807 — - 594,807
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 2,736,504 — - 2,736,504
Intermediate-term bond fund 972,183 - - 972,183
High yield bond fund 243,935 - - 243,935
Foreign bond 14,089 - - 14,089
Government securities 746,217 - - 746,217
International equities 786,193 - - 786,193
Domestic, large-cap 1,095,893 - - 1,095,893
Domestic, mid-cap 49,538 - - 49,538
Domestic, small-cap 3,520 - - 3,520
Domestic, Multi Alt 404,922 - - 404,922
Real estate fund 125,629 - - 125,629
Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap 2,470,333 - - 2,470,333
Domestic, mid-cap 501,299 - - 501,299
Domestic, small-cap 192,844 - - 192,844
International equity 293,853 — - 293,853
Corporate and foreign bonds - 620,550 - 620,550
Government and agency securities — 317.780 — 317,780
$12,641,659 $938330 §___ -  $13,579989
Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds $ 15,496 $ - $ - $ 15,496
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap 93,067 -~ - 93,067
Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income - 20,784 - 20,784
$__108563 $.20784 §___ - §_ 129,347
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements $ - 5 - $2,819967 $_2.819,967
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

2014
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intermediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Domestic, Multi Alt
Real estate fund

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity

Corporate and foreign bonds

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets
Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International fixed income
Commodity
Real estate investment trust

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 523,616 $ - $ - $ 523,616
1,238,248 - - 1,238,248
644,905 — - 644,905
3,562,348 - - 3,562,348
824,376 - - 824,376
264,363 - - 264,363
14,168 - - 14,168
752,030 — - 752,030
784,490 — - 784,490
1,500,128 - — 1,500,128
147,920 - - 147,920
3,480 - - 3,480
112,233 - - 112,233
128,303 - - 128,303
2,510,846 - - 2,510,846
508,556 - - 508,556
193,682 - - 193,682
326,879 - — 326,879
991 - - 991
- 711,063 - 711,063
- 366,744 — 366,744
$14,041,562 $1,077,807 $ — $15,119,369
$ 16,172 $ - $ - $ 16,172
225,799 57,705 — 283,504
- 33,685 - 33,685
- 72,307 - 72,307
46,695 - - 46,695
- 133,076 - 133,076
30,821 - - 30,821
42,050 - - 42,050
35,117 - - 35,117
$__396,654 $_296,773 $ = $_ 693427
$ - § - $3,329.813 $.3,329.813




11.

12.

EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH’s Level 3 liabilities
for the years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014:

Interest

Rate Swaps
Beginning balance, August 31, 2013 $(2,758,346)
Unrealized loss, net (594,854)
Decrease due to deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12 23,387
Ending balance, August 31,2014 (3,329,813)
Unrealized loss, net (227,568)
Decrease due to deconsolidation of affiliate — see note 12 737.414
Ending balance, August 31, 2015 $(2.819.967)

Excluding interest rate swaps held by deconsolidated affiliates (see note 12), the net amounts of
unrealized losses for the period attributable to the change in unrealized losses relating to the interest rate
swaps still held at August 31, 2015 and 2014 were $227,568 and $594,854, respectively.

Easter Seals NH’s other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
from affiliates, program and other accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable, lines
of credit, and long-term debt, have fair values approximating their carrying values because of the short-
term nature of the financial instruments or because interest rates approximate current market rates.

Deconsolidation of Related Entity

On August 31, 2015, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with Fedcap, an unrelated entity,
whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole member interest in Easter Seals NY to Fedcap for no
consideration. Accordingly, all of the assets, liabilities and net assets of Easter Seals NY were transferred
to Fedcap effective August 31, 2015. Easter Seals NH was concurrently released from all guarantees and
other obligations related to Easter Seals NY. Easter Seals NH recognized a decrease in net assets of
$80,656 as a result of the deconsolidation of Easter Seals NY. The accompanying 2015 consolidated
financial statements include the operating results of Easter Seals NY for the period from September 1,
2014 through August 31, 2015.

On July 31,2014, Easter Seals NH entered into an agreement with The Connecticut Institute for the Blind,
Inc. d/b/a Oak Hill (Oak Hill), an unrelated entity, whereby Easter Seals NH agreed to transfer its sole
member interest in Easter Seals CT to Oak Hill for no consideration. Accordingly, all of the assets,
liabilities and net assets of Easter Seals CT were transferred to Oak Hill effective July 31, 2014. Easter
Seals NH was concurrently released from all guarantees and other obligations related to Easter Seals CT.
Easter Seals NH recognized a decrease in net assets of $5,841,079 as a result of the deconsolidation of
Easter Seals CT. The accompanying 2014 consolidated financial statements include the operating results
of Easter Seals CT for the period from September 1, 2013 through July 31, 2014.
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August 31, 2015 and 2014

Deconsolidation of Related Entity (Continued)

Summary statements of financial position and activities of Easter Seals NY for the years ended August 31,
2015 and 2014 and Easter Seals CT for the period ended July 31, 2014 are as follows:

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Program and other accounts
receivable, net

Assets limited as to use

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interests in trust
held by others

Fixed assets, net

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Line of credit
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued expenses
Long-term debt
Interest rate swap agreement
Capital lease obligation
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Total public support and revenue

Total operating expenses

Other nonoperating expenses,
gains and losses, net

Increase (decrease) in net assets before
discontinued operations

Easter Seals CT
Easter Seals NY Easter Seals NY July 31,2014
August 31, 2015 August 31,2014 _ (Unaudited)
$ 812,975 $ 858,787 $ 21,440
3,291,793 3,039,832 18,572
- - 3,548,526
706,842 900,840 256,832
501,660 563,738 5,719,267
7,592,335 5,361,330 1,879,966
370,019 452.940 24.828
13,275,624 11,177,467 11,469,431
(3,101,513) (1,935,548) -
(940,713) (1,435,010) —
(222,027) (51,562) (3,138,717)
(944,467) 917,617) -
(6,802,401) (4,966,713) (2,365,500)
(737,414) (660,433) -
(78,325) - -
(368.108) (239.506) (124.135)
(13.194.968) (10,206,389) (5.628.352)
$ 80,656 $_ 971,078 $_5.841,079
11-Month
Period Ended
Year Ended Year Ended July 31,2014
August 31, 2015 August 31,2014 (Unaudited)
$ 28,576,469 $ 29,130,350 $ 1,027,556
(29,757,863) (29,888,051) (856,861)
(273.772) (141.883) 778,724
$_(1,455,166) $__ (899,584) $__ 949419
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2015 and 2014

Deconsolidation of Related Entity (Continued

Losses from discontinued operations within Easter Seals NY for years ended August 31, 2015 and 2014
were $63,854 and $192,456, respectively. Losses from discontinued operations within Easter Seals CT
for the eleven month period ended July 31, 2014 were $454,230. Total increase (decrease) in net assets
for Easter Seals NY for the year ended August 31, 2015 includes the forgiveness of accounts payable and
loan to affiliates of $628,598.

Discontinued Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include various programs and entities that are
reported as discontinued operations, as follows:

e  OnJanuary 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools
and cease all operations of this subsidiary.

¢  On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY voted to discontinue the Bronx
Early Intervention program.

e  On May 2, 2014 the Sayville program in NY was discontinued as a license was not able to be
obtained.

e OnlJuly 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in Portland, Maine was
transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME discontinued offering
those services. On October 17, 2013, the Maine Board of Directors voted to close the Maine
Vocational programs.

¢  On September 25,2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT voted to discontinue the camp
programs and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013.

e  OnlJune 11, 2014, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH voted to discontinue the Pediatric
Outpatient programs located in Manchester and Dover due to significant losses the programs
were experiencing,.

The management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs/entities
met the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs/entities
were based on performance factors.

Summary statements of financial position for each of the above discontinued programs/entities as of
August 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Harbor Schools New York
2015 2014 2015 2014

Total assets $ 881,802 $878,144 §$ 21,047 $ 32,929
Total liabilities 645,381 648,892 61,380 44,511
Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted 187,136 180,556 (40,033) (11,582)

Temporarily restricted 25,459 24,870 - -

Permanently restricted 23,826 23,826 - -

34



13.

14.

EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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August 31,2015 and 2014

Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Maine New Hampshire
2015 2014 2015 2014
Total assets $ - $ 825 $256,980 $800,810
Total liabilities - - - 31,783
Net assets:
Unrestricted - 825 256,980 769,027

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued programs/entities for the years ended
August 31,2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Harbor Schools New York
2015 2014 2015 2014

Total public support

and revenue $ 50,578 § 22,127 $ - 3 -
Operating expenses (42,885) (70,891) (47,408) (192,456)
Other nonoperating

expense, gains

or (losses) (524) 830 - -
Loss on sale of

properties, net = - (16,446) -
Total increase (decrease)

in net assets $_1.169 $_(47.934) $ _(63.854) $_(192.456)

Maine Connecticut New Hampshire
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Total public

support and

revenue $(302) § 4667 § - $ 57,166 $ 19,096 $ 1,276,909
Operating expenses - (42,262) - (511,596) (119,573) (2,018,853)
Gain (loss) on sale

of properties, net - - — 200 (46.620) -
Total decrease in

net assets $(302) $(37,595) $__ —_  $(454,230) $(147.097) $_(741.944)
Concentrations

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. Easter Seals’
investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk. No investments
exceeded 10% of investments as of August 31, 2015.
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Easter Seals New Hampshire, 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103

2016 Board of Directors

Chairman
Andrew MacWilliam

Past Chairman
Jim Bee

Vice Chairman
Tom Sullivan

Vice Chairman
Charles Goodwin

Treasurer
Matthew Boucher

Assistant Treasurer
Wendell Butcher

Secretary
Ann-Marie Forrester

Assistant Secretary
Charles Panasis

Chairman — Farnum Center
Ian MacDermott

6/10/2016

Richard Rawlings
Dennis Beaulieu
Cynthia Makris
Eleanor Dahar
Doris Labbe

Tim Murray

Sue MacDermott

Ben Gamache

Rick Courtemanche

Kurt Patten
David Goldberg
Bryan Bouchard

Bob Litterst

Barry LaBombarde
Leslie Thompson
Rob Wieczorek
General Counsel &
Assistant Secretary

(non voting member)
Bradford Cook, Esq.




Larry J. Gammon
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
555 Auburn Street
Manchester, NH 03103

Employment

7/88 to Present President, Chief Executive Officer
A member of Easter Seals National, the Agency is a comprehensive,
multi-facility organization with services throughout New Hampshire,
Vermont and Maine. Employing over 2000 persons, and operating in
excess of 100 million dollars, the Agency has services in Vocational,
Educational, Residential, Clinical, Medical, Camping/Recreational,
Veterans and Substance Abuse. Position reports to the Chairman of the
Board of Directors.

6/85 —7/88 Executive Vice President
Vice President

8/75 - 6/85 Deputy Executive Director

Easter Seal Society/Goodwill Industries of New Hampshire/Vermont

In progressive management experiences, guided the Agency’s programs
through a growth from 1+ million dollar budget, and status as one of the
most comprehensive service organizations in the country.

Directly responsible to the Executive Director, later President, for
supervision of all professional programs of the comprehensive
rehabilitation centers, with CARF accreditation in Audiology, Speech
Pathology, Social Adjustment, Physical Restoration and Vocational
Adjustment. In addition, the Society operates a large day school for
handicapped pupils, 3 work adjustment center/sheltered workshops, a
comprehensive camping program, retail sales outlets, and a pupil
transportation program of 75 students per day. Duties included, but were
not limited to, hiring and supervision of staff, program development,
budget development and control, procuring funding, and staffing of
various Board committees.
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9/71 — 8/75 New Hampshire Easter Seal Society for Crippled Children & Adults, Inc.
870 Hayward St.
Manchester, NH 03103
Position: Facilities Director, Easter Seal School
Program Development, supervision and recruitment of staff, screening of

pupils; developing budget, and securing funding.

9/70 - 7/71 New Hampshire Department of Education
Keene Public Schools
Keene, NH 03431
Position: Special Education Consultant
1 year study of special education needs of 6 small towns in New

Hampshire. Responsible to 6 school boards and the New Hampshire
Department of Special Education, Title VI-B Grant.

2/69-8/70 Gary Public Schools

Gary, IN

Position: Teacher, Special Education

Classroom teacher, M.R. Summer program for trainable M.R.
9/67 — 1/69 Charlottesville Public Schools

Charlottesville, VA

Position: Teacher M.R. — Department Chairman

Teacher, pre-vocational services, Department Chairman for Junior High
age M.R. Director, Summer project (7/68), Title 1.
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Education

9/62 — 8/66 University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA
B.S. in Special Education, emphasis in Mental Retardation. All
undergraduate courses were at the Master’s Level. Dean’s List, Junior &
Senior years.

9/66 -8/67 University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA
36 hours of Graduate School of Education, emphasis in Administration,
Testing & Evaluation and Research. Full time graduate scholarship.

Service National

Chairman, Board of Trustees, CARF, 1990-1991

Member, Board of Trustees, CARF, 1985-1991

Medders Award, Outstanding Easter Seals Executive, 1995
President, Easter Seals Leadership Association, 1998-2000

Local

Queen City Rotary Club, Member

Serenity Place, Board of Directors

Mayor’s Task Force/Senior Services

Hillcrest Terrace, Board of Directors

CEO Council

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center — Assembly of Overseers
YMCA Disability Council

Recognition
Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 2010

Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 2005
Non-Profit Business of the Decade, Business NH Magazine, 2000
Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 1994



NANCY L. ROLLINS
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc
555 Auburn St
Manchester, NH 03103

EXPERIENCE

Goodwill Industries of Northern New England
38 Locke Road, #2
Concord, NH 03301

New Hampshire State Director for Strategic Development and Public Policy  January, 2014 — October
25,2016

Responsible for collaboration with existing state and local networks to identify, develop or create potential
businesses and programs serving the state of New Hampshire. Assuring such activities are consistent with
Goodwill of Northern New England’s (Goodwill NNE) strategic plan and vision of creating sustainable
communities that thrive through the fullest participation of their diverse residents. Acquire knowledge
about current trends and emerging issues in public policy, as well as New Hampshire business practices
and relates them to existing and potential Goodwill NNE business and program development. Works in
conjunction with Goodwill NNE senior management team, New Hampshire Goodwill NNE retail staff,
and Agency program managers to fulfill goals in New Hampshire and the agency in general. Represents
Goodwill NNE in all state and local activities consistent with the agency's mission to enable persons
with diverse challenges achieve personal stability and community engagement.

Serves as a member of the Senior Management Team. Report directly to the President/ Chief Executive
Officer.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Associate Commissioner March, 2006 — January, 2014

Responsible for the Division of Community Based Care Services (DCBCS) which provides a wide range
of supports and services in partnership with community providers for individuals with developmental
disabilities and acquired brain disorders; individuals with serious mental illness or emotional disturbance;
adults aged 18-60 who have a chronic illness or disability; individuals age 60 or older; adult protective
services ages 18-and up; individuals with substance abuse and alcohol abuse disorders; persons who are
homeless or at —risk of homelessness; and children age 0-18 with physical disabilities, chronic illnesses
and special health care needs. DCBCS focuses on the development and implementation of long-term care
systems that can support an individual’s choice to remain in community and out of long-term institutional
settings.

Served as a member of the Commissioner’s Senior Management and Policy Team. This senior level
position was a direct report to the Commissioner



State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Medicaid Business & Policy
And
Division of Community Based Care Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301
January, 2006 — March, 2006
Interim Director
At the request of the Commissioner of the Department of Health and Human Services agreed to serve as
Interim Director of the Office of Medicaid Business & Policy (OMBP), which has functional
responsibility for health planning, reporting, data and research, and the Medical Assistance program
(Medicaid).

In addition, serves as Interim Director for the Division of Community Based Care Services (DCBCS).
This Division provides a wide range of supports and services in partnership with community systems for
individuals with developmental disabilities and acquired brain disorders, individuals with serious mental
illness or emotional disturbance, adults aged 18-60 who have a chronic illness or disability and individuals
age 60 or older, and children age 0-18 with physical disabilities, chronic illnesses and special health care
needs.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Division for Children, Youth, and Families

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 July 1995 — January 2, 2006

Director

Assigned as Acting Director in July 1995, during a reorganization of the Department of Health and Human
Services. On November 27, 1995 assumed the position of Director of the Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) responsible for state leadership of the agency that has statutory authority for child
protection, children in need of services (CHINS) and community-based juvenile justice, juvenile
probations and parole services. In addition DCYF has administrative responsibility for statewide domestic
violence funds and provides state funded childcare/child development services that are employment
related, protective or preventative. Administer an annual budget of $124 million dollars. The Division
maintains fifteen service sites statewide with a staff of 370. In addition the Division contracts or vendors
services to over 1,600 community-based providers or residential care facilities. On September 16, 2001 the
juvenile probation responsibility transferred from DCYF to a newly created Division for Juvenile Justice
Services (DJJS). DCYF retains responsibility for child protection, child development/childcare, domestic
violence and child welfare prevention services. Administratively DCYF oversees the use of Federal child
welfare and Medicaid funds for DJJS. The Director position is a direct report to the Commissioner of the
Department of Health and Human Services. Serve as a member of the Department’s management team.
Provide leadership regarding children, youth and family issues in a wide variety of areas on the
community, state and national levels.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Children, Youth, and Families
6 Hazen Drive



Concord, NH 03301 August 1994 - July 1995

Deputy Director

Direct responsibility for planning and oversight of operational areas of the Bureau of Administrative
Services. This includes oversight of the agency budget, personnel, provider relations, and payment of
services. Oversees the Bureau of Children and Families which is responsible for all field operations
including twelve district offices providing child welfare, children in need of services (CHINS) and
juvenile justice services; and the Bureau of Residential Services that is responsible for the operations of
the Youth Detention facility, a long-term juvenile detention facility; the Youth Services Unit, a short-term,
pre-adjudication unit; and the Tobey School, a state operated residential facility for seriously emotionally
disturbed children and youth. Serve as a liaison to various local, state, and federal agencies relative to
child welfare, juvenile justice, and children's mental health services.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Mental Health and Developmental Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 February 1993 - July 1994

Administrator of Children's Mental Health Services

Coordinate planning efforts for development of Community Mental Health Services and programs for
children and adolescents; directed contract negotiations with provider agencies; developed and directed
initiatives to recommend and implement policies and standards for the enhancement of community-based
services and supports for children and their families; provided technical assistance to mental health
organizations to resolve operational problems in the care and training of families and child/adolescent
consumers; serve as a liaison to various local, state, and federal agencies relative to children's mental
health services.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Mental Health and Developmental Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 March 1990 - July 1994

Director of New Hampshire - Child and Adolescent Service System Project.

Director of a statewide systems change project funded by the National Institute of Mental Health.
Responsible for writing and acquiring two consecutive, three-year, statewide development grants to
enhance children's mental health services in New Hampshire. The project involved coordinating state-
level interagency planning teams; facilitating a systems change process with state and local interagency
planning teams; coordinating, parent support effort, minority outreach, and training initiatives; and
instituting new services-delivery for children and adolescents who have a serious emotional disturbance.

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Mental Health and Developmental Services
105 Pleasant Street



Concord, NH 03301 March 1989 - March 1990

Program Planning and Review Specialist

Mental Health Program Administrator for statewide community mental health services. Regional
responsibility for The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester and Center for Life Management,
Salem, NH community mental health services; shelters for homeless, and the Consumer Support Program
(CSP) Consumer Demonstration Grant. Administer, manage, and monitor federal and state grants; oversee
development and implementation of all program services. Clinical Consultant, Child and Adolescent
Service System Project, a statewide capacity building project for the development of a statewide
comprehensive system of care for seriously emotionally disturbed children and youth.

River Valley Counseling Center, Inc. May 1978 — February 1989
Chicopee Adolescent Program
Chicopee, Massachusetts

Director, Child/Adolescent Outpatient Mental Health Services

Administrative:

Responsible for development and implementation of all program services, including, individual, group,
and family therapy, Adventure-Based Treatment Program; Home Supports Outreach Program;
Community Agency Consultation; Court Advocacy. Supervision of fourteen staff. Developed, negotiated,
and maintained contract services with the Massachusetts’s Department of Public Health; Department of
Mental Health; Department of Social Services; Department of Youth Services; Chicopee Community
Development; Pioneer Valley United Way; and the United Way of Holyoke, Granby, and South Hadley.
Developed, negotiated, and monitored contract services with seven area community school systems.
Responsible for an $850,000 Program budget. Co-developed and co-founded the Holyoke Teen Clinic in
partnership with Holyoke pediatrics Association, Holyoke Health Clinic, and Providence Hospital Alcohol
and Substance Abuse Treatment Services, a comprehensive school-based health clinic serving senior and
Jjunior high-school students and their families. Formed partnerships with area human service networks.
Provided in-service training workshops to local schools and community agencies. Developed and
implemented mental health and substance abuse treatment services on site at the Westover Job Corps
Healthcare Facility in Chicopee, Mass. The Westover Job Corps serves a large multicultural population
from throughout the greater Northeast.

Clinical:

Provide individual, group, and family therapy to low and moderate-income families. Focus on substance
abuse, family systems, and general child/adolescent mental health services. Developed and co-lead
Adventure-based treatment groups with adolescents who have serious emotional disturbances,
developmental delays and /or special medical needs. Provided clinical supervision to nine therapists.
Provided clinical consultation to Holyoke Girls Club/Boys Club; Holyoke High School Teen Clinic, Inc.;
Chicopee District Court, Holyoke District Court, and the Department of Social Services, Holyoke District
Office; facilitated staff case disposition, in-service training and utilization review of children’s mental
health cases.

Hartford Neighborhood Centers



Mitchell House
Hartford, Connecticut September 1974 - May 1975

Youth Counselor

Full-time undergraduate student internship. Developed and implemented human service programs for
inner-city Hispanic and African-American youth. Provided counseling, therapeutic recreation, advocacy,
and crisis intervention services. Served as a member of City-Wide Y outh Board. Provided staff support to
other Center programs serving pre-schoolers, school-aged youth and elderly.

Springfield Girls Club/ Family Center
Springfield, Massachusetts September 1973 - May 1974

Child Care Worker

Provided a multi-cultural, after school recreational program for preschoolers.
EDUCATION

Master of Social Work
University of Connecticut
School of Social Work
West Hartford, Connecticut

Degree conferred, May 1985
Concentration in Public Policy and Administration-Minor in Group Work

Bachelor of Science, Cum Laude
Springfield College
Springfield, Massachusetts

Degree conferred, May 1985
Concentration in Community, Leadership and Organizational Development
Primary Focus on Human Services Administration

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

Dartmouth College Medical School

Department of Psychiatry

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center

Lebanon, New Hampshire

Adjunct Faculty January 2001- Dec. 2005

Springfield College

School of Human Services

Manchester, New Hampshire

Adjunct Faculty May 1999 — August 2005

New Hampshire Public Manager Program
NH Division of Personnel
Bureau of Education and Training



Professional Mentor for a middle management employee  December 1997 — December 1999

University of New Hampshire

School of Health and Human Services

Department of Social Work

Adjunct Faculty September 1996 - 1999

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Brain Injury Association of NH — Employment Advisory Committee ~ September 2015 —2016

Governor’s Interagency Council on Homelessness (ICH) Employment Workgroup
February 2015 -Present

Center on Aging and Community Living Advisory Board September 2014 - Present

Legislative Task Force on Work and Family, Governor Appointment September 2014- Present

NH Center for Non-profits Policy and Leadership Task Force ~May 2014 - Present

New Hampshire State Rehabilitation Advisory Council, Governor Appointment February 2014 — Present
Chair Oct. 2016 - Present

National Advisory Committee, Positioning Public Child Welfare Inititative: Strengthening Families
For the 21" Century this initiative is co-sponsored by the National Association of Public Child Welfare
Administrators (NAPCWA) and Casey Family Programs February 2008 - 2009

New Hampshire State Mental Health Council January 2006 — 2011

New Hampshire Children’s Behavioral Health Collaborative, Member Leadership Committee 2010-
August 2013

New Hampshire Interagency Coordinating Council for Women Offenders January 2006 — December
2013

National Association of State Mental Policy Directors (NASMHPD) January 2006- December 2013
NASMHPD representative to the Children’s Mental Health Subcommittee
Chair, NASMHPD President’s Task Force on Returning Veteran’s
Board Member Member-at-Large 2011-2013
Board Member NASMHPD Research Institute, Inc. (NRI) 201 1-Present
NASMHPD Research Institute, Inc. (NRI), Board Vice-President 2011-2013
NASMHPD Representative to the 27" Annual Rosalyn Carter Symposium on Mental Health
Policy, “Building Bridges and Support for Children Exposed to Domestic Violence, Child
Welfare and Juvenile Justice”, Atlanta, Georgia, Oct. 26 and 27, 2011.
NASMHPD Board Vice-President 2012 - 2013

National Association of Public Child Welfare Administrators NAPCWA), an Affiliate of the American
Public Human Services Association



SMHRCY Representative to Children's Mental Health Subcommittee and
NAPCWA Executive Committee, 1991 - 1994
NH State Child Welfare Representative, 1995- Present
NAPCWA Executive Committee, Member-at-Large, Vice-President, January 2002- Dec 2004
NAPCWA State Representative to the APHSA —sponsored re-writes of the Interstate Compact for
The Placement of Children, Dec. 2004 — Nov. 2005
NAPCWA President, January 2005 — January 2006

New England Association of Child Welfare Commissioners and Directors
Judge Baker Children’s Center, Boston, Mass.

Committee Member, 1995 — January 2006

Vice-President, 2001- January 2006

NH Chapter of the National Association of Social Workers September 1999 - 2003
25 Walker Street
Concord, New Hampshire

State Advisory Board - Member- at-large

University of New Hampshire

School of Health and Human Services

Department of Social Work September 1998 — September 2002
Community Advisory Board Member

National Technical Assistance Center for Children’s Mental Health 1995 - 1998
Georgetown University Child Development Center
Advisory Committee Member

State Mental Health Representative for Children and Youth (SMHRCY)
NH State Representative, 1989 - 1994
Executive Committee, 1992 - 1994

Community 2000: Pioneer Valley United Way
Member, Substance Abuse Subcommittee
Children and Adolescents Subcommittee, 1988 - 1989

Western MA. AIDS Service Providers Coalition, 1987 - 1989

Massachusetts Council for Children 1988 -1989
Board of Directors Regional Member, Holyoke, MA

Massachusetts Association of Substance Abuse Service Providers (MASASP)
Member of Statewide Board of Directors, 1985 - 1987

CIVIC ASSOCIATIONS



Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Regional Planning Commission, Commissioner Representative for the Town
of New London appointed by Town Board of Selectmen. 2012 -2016
Vice Chair of the Commission, Serve on the Executive Committee 2014 -2016

New London Zoning Board of Adjustments, appointed by the Town Board of Selectman
2013-2014

At Home New Hampshire, helping seniors ‘age in place’ in New London, Newbury, Springfield,
Sunapee, Sutton and Wilmot, Board of Directors. 2012-2014

Member of Saint Andrew’s Episcopal Church, New London, NH
Appointed to the Vestry, January 2014 -2017

New London, Board of Selectmen Elected, May 2014- Present
Chair, May 2015 -2016
Board Representative to the Budget Committee 2014-2017

New Hampshire Municipal Association, Board of Directors 2015 - Present
Awards

Awarded the “New Hampshire National Guard Distinguished Service Medal” for providing
leadership while at the Department of Health and Human Services for developing services,
supports and special military / civilian partnerships for the purposes of better meeting the needs
of New Hampshire service members both active duty, deployed and reserves, their families,
and veterans. Presented by William N. Reddel III, Major General , New Hampshire National
Guard, The Adjutant General and Governor Margaret Wood Hassan , 20 November 2014.

Awarded the “Commander’s Award for Civilian Service” for organizing and implementing
‘Operation Welcome Home’ a military / civilian partnership to support hundreds of New
Hampshire Guard service members returning from Iraq and Afghanistan. Presented by Kenneth
Clark, Major General, New Hampshire National Guard, The Adjutant General, 24 May 2005.

Awarded the “Commissioner’s Award” which recognizes those who, through their hard work
and dedication, have made outstanding contributions toward the prevention, intervention, and
treatment of child abuse and neglect. Individuals who receive this award have demonstrated a
strong personal commitment to ensuring the safety and well bein% of children and to supporting
and strengthening our nation's families. Presented at the 2005 15" National Conference on
Child Abuse and Neglect, by Joan E. Ohl, Commissioner, Children’s Bureau, Administration
for Children, Youth and Families, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Washington, D.C., 21 April 2005.



CAREER SUMMARY:

Elin Treanor
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
555 Auburn Street
Manchester, NH 03103

Leadership, management and teamwork involving all business related functions and
administration. Major emphasis on providing high quality and cost effective
services to customers.

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE:

e Accounting, financial reporting, budgeting, internal controls, auditing, cost
reporting, variance analysis, accounts payable, purchasing and payroll

WORK HISTORY:

2012 — Present

1994 — 2012
1988 — 1994
1984 — 1988

Cash management, investments, borrowing, banking relationships

Billing, receivables, collections, funding sources, third party reimbursement
Insurances, contracts, grants, legal issues

Policies and procedures development, problem solving

Financial training and consultation

Strategic and business planning

Liaison with Board of Directors and Committees

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, NH
Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer
Oversee all program and fiscal management of multi-
corporate, multi-state entity.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, NH

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Oversee fiscal management for 100 million-dollar budget size,
multi-corporate, multi-state entity. Also, responsible for
reception, maintenance, customer service functions.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Vice President of Finance

Responsible for finance functions and information systems
agency wide. Instrumental in major financial turnaround from
$600,000 deficit in 1988 to $100,000 surplus in 1989 and
surpluses every year thereafter.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Controller

Promoted to position with added responsibilities of managing
billing function and staff. Converted financial applications to
integrated automated systems. Involved in corporate



1982 — 1984

1981 — 1982

1980 — 1981

1974 - 1980

EDUCATION:

1989

1980

1977

SERVICE:

National Easter Seals:

reorganizations to multiple entities and external corporate
mergers and acquisitions.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Chief Accountant

Promoted to supervisory position to manage accounting,
payroll, payables, purchasing. Revised budget process, audit
work, procedures and monitoring systems.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Accountant

Promoted to take charge of general ledger, reconciliations and
financial reporting. Established chart of accounts, fund
accounting system and internal controls.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Internal Auditor

Handled accounts payable, cash flow, grant billing and review
of general ledger accounts.

Marshalls, Peabody, MA

Senior Clerk

Worked as cashier, customer service representative and
bookkeeper, while attending college.

New Hampshire College, Hooksett, NH
Masters in Business Administration

Bentley College, Waltham, MA
Bachelor of Science, Accounting Major

North Shore Community College, Beverly, MA
Associates Degree, Accounting Major

Leader of Northeast Region Chief Financial Officers
Treasurer of Northeast Region Leadership Association
Past Chairman of the Quality Council



Tina M. Sharby, PHR

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
555 Auburn Street
Manchester, NH 03103

Human Resources Professional with multi-state experience working as a strategic partner in all
aspects of Human Resources Management.

Areas of expertise include:

Strong analytical and organizational skills Problem solving and complaint resolution
Ability to manage multiple tasks simultaneously ~ Policy development and implementation
Employment Law and Regulation Compliance Compensation and benefits administration

Strategic management, mergers and acquisitions

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Chief Human Resources Officer 2012-Present

Senior Vice President Human Resources
Easter Seals, NH, VT, ME, & Farnum Center
1998- 2012

Reporting directly to the President with total human resources and administration.
Responsible for employee relations, recruitment and retention, compensation, benefits,
risk management, health and safety, staff development for over 2100 employees in a six
state not-for- profit organization. Developed and implemented human resources policies
to meet all organizational, state and federal requirements. Research and implemented an
organizational wide benefits plan that is supportive of on-boarding and retention needs.

Developed and implemented a due diligence research and analysis system for assessing
merger and acquisition opportunities. Partnered with senior staff team in preparation of
strategic planning initiatives.

Member of the organizations Compliance Committee, Wellness Committee and Risk
Management Committee. Attended various board meetings as part of the senior
management team, and sit on the investment committee of the Board of Directors for
Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Human Resources Director
Moore Center Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
1986-1998

Held progressively responsible positions in this not-for-profit organization of 450
employees. Responsible for the development and administration of all Human Resources



activities. Implemented key regulatory compliance programs and developed innovative
employee relations initiatives in a rapidly changing business environment. Lead the
expansion of the Human Resources department from basic benefit administration to
becoming a key advisor to the senior management.

Key responsibilities included benefit design, implementation and administration; workers
compensation administration; wage and salary administration, new employee orientation
and training; policy development and communication; retirement plan administration;
budgetary development; and recruitment.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science Degree, Keene State College, 1986
Minor in Human Resources and Safety Management
MS Organizational Leadership, Southern NH University (in process)

ORGANIZATIONS

Manchester Area Human Resource Association
Diversity Chair 2010
Society for Human Resource Management
BIA Human Resources
Health Care & Workforce Development Committee 2009, 2010



Susan L. Silsby

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Over 25 years of experience in the non- profit industry
Successful track record in program operations across multiple states
Strong leadership and managerial skills
Solid fiscal management ability
Exceptional customer service skills
= Professional, organized and highly motivated
EDUCATION

University System of New Hampshire Plymouth, New Hampshire
BA in Psychology

Varsity Swimming & Diving, Varsity Field Hockey, Delta Zeta Nationall
Sorority
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

1988- Present  EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE
Senior Vice President of Program Services

Plan, develop, implement and monitor program services for adults
throughout New Hampshire.

Manage all aspects of operations related to the delivery services including
program development, financial management and personnel
management.

Analyze trends in referrals, service delivery and funding to develop and
implement strategic plans that increase the market share, enhance
financial viability and improve public relations.

Report on administrative, financial, and programmatic outcomes.

Initiate and maintain contact with local and state agency representatives,
at all levels, to promote Easter Seals services and develop new program
opportunities.

Establish and maintain effective and positive relationships with public and
private agencies, referring agencies, parents, funders, and community
representatives to ensure customer satisfaction and solicit increased
referrals

Other positions held: Vice President of Community Based Services, Director of
Vocational Services, Direct Support Professional



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Easter Seals NH, Inc.

TANF Service Members, Veterans, and Their Families Care Coordination
Name of Program: (SS-2017-OHS-01-TANFM)

Larry Gammon President & CEO $353,119 0.00%| ~ $0.00
Nancy Rollins Chief Strategy Officer $117,000 0.00%) = §900
Elin Treanor Chief Financial Officer $225,920 0.00%{ - §;000
Tina Sharby Chief Human Resource Officer $152,650 0.00%} ’ goo
Susan Silsby Sr Vice President - Programs $150,380 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line ltem 1 of Budget request) - $0.00




